CANADA COMMUNITY-BUILDING FUND 2024-2034

COMMUNITY WORKS FUND PROGRAM GUIDE

LAST UPDATED - 2024/06/17

Table of Contents

PROGRAM OVERVIEW	2
ELIGIBLE INVESTMENT CATEGORIES	3
PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION GUIDELINES	4
KEY DATES	5
ALLOCATIONS AND PAYMENTS	6
APPLICATION	7
STACKING	7
ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES	8
INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES	9
REPORTING	11
COMMUNICATIONS AND SIGNAGE	12
AUDIT, EVALUATION AND GOVERNANCE	12
ASSET MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS	12
DEFINITIONS	13
APPENDIX A – GUIDELINES FOR CWF PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION FOR ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTS	
APPENDIX B — ADDITIONAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITIES WITHIN METRO VANCOUVER AND A POPULATION OF 30,000 OR GREATER	F 17
APPENDIX C - ADDITIONAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNIT OUTSIDE METRO VANCOUVER WITH AND A POPULATION OF 30,000 OR GREATER)
APPENDIX D - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS	19
2024 – 2029 CWF ALLOCATIONS	22

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

The Community Works Fund (CWF) is one of three funding streams delivered through the Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF) in British Columbia, formerly known as the Gas Tax Fund. The recently renewed CCBF Agreement provides a ten-year commitment of federal funding for investments in local government infrastructure and capacity building projects through March 31, 2034.

Between 2024 and 2029, local governments in British Columbia are confirmed to receive approximately \$1.6 billion of CCBF funding through various program delivery models, \$650 million of which will be delivered through the Community Works Fund program.

Local governments can invest their annual CWF allocations in 23 unique capital and capacity building project categories, see *Table 1* on the following page.

Eligible categories have been expanded from the previous Agreement to include the purchase of fire trucks as a stand-alone project and the addition of a Resilience category to replace Disaster Mitigation.

Feasibility studies and detail design projects are now eligible under all infrastructure categories, as stand-alone projects.

ELIGIBLE INVESTMENT CATEGORIES

Table 1

Productivity and Economic Growth											
Local Roads and Bridges	Public Transit										
Active Transportation	Short-sea Shipping										
Regional and Local Airports	Short-line Rail										
Broadband Connectivity											
Clean Environment											
Drinking Water	Community Energy System										
Wastewater	Brownfield Redevelopment										
Solid Waste											
Strong Cities and Communities											
Sport Infrastructure	Fire Halls & Fire Trucks										
Recreation Infrastructure	Tourism Infrastructure										
Cultural Infrastructure	Resilience										
Capacity	Building										
Asset Mai	nagement										
Long-term Infrast	tructure Planning										
Integrated Community	Sustainability Planning										
Housing Ne	eds Reports										

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION GUIDELINES

Part 1 of this Program Guide covers general rules for all local governments receiving Community Works Funding. The CWF program now has distinct reporting requirements for different areas and population throughout the province. Additional reporting requirements and program criteria for the following local government types can be found in Appendices B1-B3.

APPENDIX A – GUIDELINES FOR CWF PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION FOR ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

APPENDIX B – ADDITIONAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITIES WITHIN METRO VANCOUVER AND A POPULATION OF 30,000 OR GREATER

APPENDIX C - ADDITIONAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITIES
OUTSIDE METRO VANCOUVER WITH AND A POPULATION OF 30,000 OR
GREATER

KEY DATES

Activity	Timeline
CWF Allocation Payments	August and December*
Project submission to PIMS	Anytime through PIMS system on- line
Submission of Annual	April 15 th – June 1 st
Expenditure Report and	
Audited Financial Statements*	
Asset Management Reporting	TBD
Signage Installation	On-going, for all projects receiving
	>\$100k of CWF funds invested
Annual Communications	Each year, for all local governments
Activity	receiving <\$400k of CWF funds
	annually

^{*}All required reporting must be submitted to UBCM, prior to receiving payments

ALLOCATIONS AND PAYMENTS

CWF allocations are determined using a formula that combines a minimum funding floor and a per capita amount for each local government in British Columbia. Allocations vary depending on the location of a local government. The program is indexed every third year which sees an increase in base and per capita. Between 2024 and 2029, local governments in British Columbia will receive the following allocations:

Years 1 -3, 2024/25 - 2026/27

Local Government Type	Base Funding Amount	Per Capita Amount
Metro Vancouver	\$63,411	\$3.23 / person
Outside Metro Vancouver	\$63,411	\$45.50 / person

Years 3-5, 2027/28 - 2028/29

Local Government Type	Base Funding Amount	Per Capita Amount
Metro Vancouver	\$65,948	\$3.36 / person
Outside Metro Vancouver	\$65,948	\$47.36 / per person

For reference, an updated 2019 – 2024 allocation table for municipalities and regional districts is found in Appendix B of this document.

APPLICATION

There is no application process for the Community Works Fund program. Local governments make local decisions about what projects to fund on an annual basis.

UBCM provides advice on eligibility and local governments report annually on project expenditures and outputs to UBCM and Infrastructure Canada. If you have questions about project eligibility, contact the CWF Program Officer at tsimpson@ubcm.ca or 250-356-0876

STACKING

The current CWF program is considered federal funds for the purpose of federal stacking rules. Although there are no specific rules in the CWF program for stacking with other grants, UBCM recommends the applicant consult with other grant officers to determine eligibility of stacking.

ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

Eligible Expenditures of Ultimate Recipients are limited to the following activities, within the 23 eligible infrastructure and capacity building project categories:

- a) expenditures associated with acquiring, planning, designing, constructing or renewal and rehabilitation of a tangible capital asset, or natural asset, and any related debt financing charges specifically identified with that asset;
- b) for the capacity building categories only, the expenditures related to strengthening the ability of Local Governments to improve local and regional planning including capital investment plans, integrated community sustainability plans, integrated regional plans, housing needs assessments, and/or asset management plans. The expenditures could include developing and implementing:
- i. studies, strategies, or systems related to asset management, which may include software acquisition and implementation;
- ii. studies, strategies, or systems related to housing or land use, including Housing Needs Assessments;
- iii. training directly related to asset management planning; and iv. long-term infrastructure plans.
- c) the expenditures directly associated with joint federal communication activities and with federal project signage.

INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

Ineligible Infrastructure / Services

- 1. Education / Daycare / Child care Centers
- Social Housing / Social Services except in Brownfield Remediation
- 3. City Halls, public works buildings and other administrative buildings
- 4. Seniors care facilities and housing
- 5. Health infrastructure (hospitals, convalescent and senior centres) are not eligible.

Ineligible Investments

- 1. Small equipment purchases
- 2. Art and exhibit manufacturing
- 3. Non-fixed assets

Ineligible Costs

- 1. Leasing costs
- 2. Overhead costs, including salaries and other employment benefits of any employees of the Ultimate Recipient
- 3. Direct or indirect operating or administrative costs
- 4. Costs related to planning, engineering, architecture, supervision, management and other activities normally carried out by staff
- 5. Purchase of land or any interest therein, and related costs
- 6. Legal fees
- 7. Routine repair and maintenance costs

Own-force Labour

Employee and equipment costs are generally not eligible. However, local governments can seek approval for incremental own force labour if:

- 1. The Ultimate Recipient demonstrates that it is not economically feasible to tender a contract;
- 2. The employee or equipment is directly engaged in the work under the parameters of a contract, and;
- 3. The arrangement has received prior approval in writing by UBCM.

If the use of own force employee or equipment costs is being considered, please contact the CWF Program Officer or Administrator for approval prior to proceeding.

REPORTING

UBCM is contractually obligated to submit an Annual Report to Canada and British Columbia by September 30th and an Outcomes Report on March 31st of each reporting year to ensure continued delivery of the program.

Annual Expenditure Reporting occurs between April and June. Local governments are required to report on project and financial outputs for the previous calendar year. Information for the following reports will be collected and confirmed every Annual Expenditure Reporting cycle:

Report	Task	Timeline
Properties and the state of the	roject Report roject identifier, name, description, tart/end date, geolocation, output and utcome indicator, percentage completed, ousing indicator (if applicable) inancial Report OC Certification Form Opening/Closing Balance Confirmation otal Annual Spending tatement of Interest Earned dijustments to previously reported interest r project spending tatement of 5-year Intended Spending audited Financial Statements ommunications Report tatement of signage installed tatement of communications activity	April 1 – June 1

Information on reporting can be found in the Annual Expenditure Report Guide.

COMMUNICATIONS AND SIGNAGE

Each local government that receives Canada Community-Building Funds has signed a funding agreement that includes a Communications Protocol. UBCM recommends that any project utilizing over \$100,000 from the CCBF should be accompanied with project signage. Communities receiving annual CCBF allocations greater than \$400,000 should undertake at least one formal communication highlighting the use of funds in each year.

Local governments are required to report on their communications activity annually through the Communications Report, as part of the Annual Expenditure Reporting, each spring.

AUDIT, EVALUATION AND GOVERNANCE

UBCM and/or Canada, may select local governments for an audit of CCBF related transactions and project eligibility. Local governments selected for audit will be notified in the spring of each year.

ASSET MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

Asset management requirements are in development and will be identified in individual Community Works Fund Agreements.

DEFINITIONS

Infrastructure - means municipal or regional, publicly or privately owned tangible capital assets, or natural assets, in British Columbia and UBCM primarily for public use or benefit.

Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets having physical substance that are acquired, constructed or developed and: (i) are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services; (ii) have useful lives extending beyond an accounting period and are intended to be used on a continuing basis; and (iii) are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Fixed equipment means any piece of property which, when installed in a facility for continuing use in connection with the facility, is considered a permanent part of the facility and cannot be reasonably removed without affecting the structural integrity of the facility, including its utility or ventilation systems. To be considered as fixed equipment, the item must be capitalized in the grantee's records as part of the facility to which it is attached. Further, if the facility were to be sold or otherwise disposed of, such equipment would be sold or otherwise disposed of as part of the facility. Examples include, but are not limited to, elevators, boilers, and furnaces; plumbing, electrical, heating-ventilating-air conditioning (HVAC), and refrigeration systems; and specialized items such as cage washers, laboratory casework, and some growth chambers.

Ultimate Recipient

(i) a Local Government or its agent (including its wholly owned corporation);

- (ii) a non-local government entity, including Indigenous recipients, non-governmental and not-for-profit organizations, on the condition that the Local Government(s) has (have) indicated support for the project through a formal resolution of its (their) council(s) or board(s) and that the entity receiving funds delivers a service typical of local government
- (iii) TransLink, BC Transit, and Islands Trust

APPENDIX A – GUIDELINES FOR CWF PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION FOR ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

UBCM encourages local governments to prioritize projects that relate to local government assets which have been identified for renewal, enhancement or construction through a local long-term infrastructure or asset management plan.

While housing is not a standalone eligible category, communities are encouraged to invest CCBF funding in ways that strategically advance housing initiatives within their communities, when it makes sense to do so.

UBCM requires recipients to spend CWF funding within 5-years of receipt unless longer timelines are identified in a long-term capital plan / long-term financial plan, which has been submitted to UBCM in advance.

Local governments should consider projects that have been identified as local or regional in scope, including how they benefit local First Nation communities.¹

Projects relating to an asset not owned by a local government must be approved through a board or council resolution which identifies the project meets the following criteria:

- 1. Board or council has identified the project as a regional or municipal priority within a long-term capital investment plan;
- 2. Board or council has not prioritized the 3rd party project over a local government owned priority project;
- 3. The project is supported by asset management planning;

¹ For regional districts, CWF is distributed based on populations of First Nations and Electoral Areas in unincorporated areas.

4. The project meets the minimum outcomes reporting criteria as identified below.

Any project that receives more than \$25,000 of CWF funding must complete annual outcomes reporting which will include the following information:

- o Population directly served by the project
- o First Nation Population directly served by the project
- o Output metric
- o Outcome metric

APPENDIX B – ADDITIONAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITIES WITHIN METRO VANCOUVER AND A POPULATION OF 30,000 OR GREATER

In addition to the guidelines found in Appendix B1, local governments within the Metro Vancouver Regional District with populations greater than 30,000 have the following additional administrative guidance.

- Housing needs report updated by March 2025 or in accordance with provincial requirements
- Provide UBCM with web link to Housing Needs Report

APPENDIX C - ADDITIONAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITIES OUTSIDE METRO VANCOUVER WITH AND A POPULATION OF 30,000 OR GREATER

In addition to the guidelines found in Appendix B1, Appendix B3 provides additional program administration guidance for the following local governments.

Abbotsford - Langford - Prince George

Campbell River
 Chilliwack
 Kamloops
 Mission
 Nanaimo
 Vernon
 Victoria

- Kelowna - Penticton - West Kelowna

- Housing Needs Report (HNR) updated by March 2025 or in accordance with provincial requirements
- Provide UBCM with web link to Housing Needs Report
- Where housing pressures have been identified within the HNR that can be addressed through closing infrastructure gaps or building capacity, prioritize these projects where it makes sense to do so, and;
- Meet the project-based housing reporting requirements in Schedule G, Section 2.2

APPENDIX D - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Below are some frequently asked questions regarding the renewed CWF program.

Why is my Community Works Fund allocation less than last year? The Canada Community-Building Fund is a national transfer currently set at \$2.3 billion nationally and based primarily on a per-capita allocation. Every five years, the allocation is updated to the most recent Canada census numbers. Changes in your allocation is therefore tied to the per capita amount Canada transfers to BC and the population change of your local government relative to all other local governments.

Therefore, local governments with a negative population change or a relatively low increase in population will be receiving less CWF. However, there is an indexing formula built in to the program which will see incremental increases to the fund over time.

What is required in order to receive my first CWF transfer? For local governments to receive their first CWF transfer in 2024, they must meet the following requirements:

- Submit their 2023 CCBF Annual Expenditure Report to UBCM (deadline was June 1, 2024)
- Submit their Audited Financial Statement to the Province
- Be in compliance with the 2014-2024 Community Works Fund Agreement
- Enter in to a 2024-2034 Community Works Fund Agreement with UBCM

When will I expect to receive my first CWF transfer?

Provided you have met the above conditions and have executed a 2024-34 Community Works Fund Agreement with UBCM, the first CWF transfer is expected to occur in August 2024 – or within 30 days of UBCM receiving its first payment from Canada.

What are the changes to the Community Works Fund Program?

Eligible Investment Categories:

- All existing eligible project categories are maintained.
- The 'Disaster Mitigation' category has been expanded and renamed 'Resilience' and eligible expenditures expanded to also include: New construction of public infrastructure and/or modification or reinforcement of existing public infrastructure including natural infrastructure that prevent, mitigate or protect against the impacts of climate change, disasters triggered by natural hazards, and extreme weather.
- The 'Fire Hall' category has been expanded to now include Fire Truck purchases as stand-alone projects.
- Feasibility Studies and Detailed Design projects are now eligible.
- Housing planning is now an eligible under Capacity Building.

Changes to Reporting:

For all local governments, the timeline for annual reporting will continue to be June 1 of each year. New requirements for reporting will include:

- Geolocation for each project (details to follow)
- A requirement to provide a standardized metric (output) for each project (such as meters of road, meters of pipe, number of facilities)
- A requirement to provide a standardized outcome for each project completed in a given year (such as increase of residents served, increase in storage capacity)

Reporting specific to municipalities with a population over 30,000:

- A Housing Needs Report updated by March 2025 in accordance with provincial requirements;
- Provide UBCM with web link to the Housing Needs Report; Additionally for non-Metro municipalities over 30,000:
- Where housing pressures have been identified within the Housing Needs Report that can be addressed through closing infrastructure gaps or building capacity, prioritization of CWF funding for these projects, where it makes sense to do so, and;
- Meet the project-based housing requirements set out in the CWF Agreement.

Spending timelines:

CWF funds received by UBCM in a given year will be required to be fully expended on eligible projects within five years. Exceptions will be considered on a case-by-case basis and identified through a long-term capital and/or asset management plan.

Note that any unspent CWF funds held by the local government under the 2014-2024 CWF program will be required to be spent within five years of entering into the 2024-2034 CWF Agreement with UBCM.

For any additional questions, please contact our CCBF staff at ccbf@ubcm.ca or 250-356-5134.

2024 – 2029 CWF ALLOCATIONS

Local Government	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29
100 Mile House	\$ 151,201	\$ 151,201	\$ 151,201	\$ 157,249	\$ 157,249
Abbotsford	\$ 7,053,953	\$ 7,053,953	\$ 7,053,953	\$ 7,336,111	\$ 7,336,111
Alberni-Clayoquot	\$ 549,713	\$ 549,713	\$ 549,713	\$ 571,702	\$ 571,702
Alert Bay	\$ 83,856	\$ 83,856	\$ 83,856	\$ 87,210	\$ 87,210
Anmore	\$ 71,029	\$ 71,029	\$ 71,029	\$ 73,870	\$ 73,870
Armstrong	\$ 305,788	\$ 305,788	\$ 305,788	\$ 318,020	\$ 318,020
Ashcroft	\$ 139,453	\$ 139,453	\$ 139,453	\$ 145,031	\$ 145,031
Barriere	\$ 143,779	\$ 143,779	\$ 143,779	\$ 149,530	\$ 149,530
Belcarra	\$ 65,633	\$ 65,633	\$ 65,633	\$ 68,258	\$ 68,258
Bowen Island	\$ 77,173	\$ 77,173	\$ 77,173	\$ 80,260	\$ 80,260
Bulkley-Nechako	\$ 923,045	\$ 923,045	\$ 923,045	\$ 959,967	\$ 959,967
Burnaby	\$ 868,924	\$ 868,924	\$ 868,924	\$ 903,681	\$ 903,681
Burns Lake	\$ 150,836	\$ 150,836	\$ 150,836	\$ 156,870	\$ 156,870
Cache Creek	\$ 107,534	\$ 107,534	\$ 107,534	\$ 111,835	\$ 111,835
Campbell River	\$ 1,680,729	\$ 1,680,729	\$ 1,680,729	\$ 1,747,958	\$ 1,747,958
Canal Flats	\$ 99,930	\$ 99,930	\$ 99,930	\$ 103,927	\$ 103,927
Capital	\$ 1,367,183	\$ 1,367,183	\$ 1,367,183	\$ 1,421,870	\$ 1,421,870
Cariboo	\$ 1,882,444	\$ 1,882,444	\$ 1,882,444	\$ 1,957,742	\$ 1,957,742
Castlegar	\$ 443,073	\$ 443,073	\$ 443,073	\$ 460,796	\$ 460,796
Central Coast	\$ 226,514	\$ 226,514	\$ 226,514	\$ 235,574	\$ 235,574
Central Kootenay	\$ 1,550,730	\$ 1,550,730	\$ 1,550,730	\$ 1,612,759	\$ 1,612,759
Central Okanagan RD	\$ 969,626	\$ 969,626	\$ 969,626	\$ 1,008,412	\$ 1,008,412
Central Saanich	\$ 855,018	\$ 855,018	\$ 855,018	\$ 889,218	\$ 889,218
Chase	\$ 172,647	\$ 172,647	\$ 172,647	\$ 179,553	\$ 179,553
Chetwynd	\$ 168,230	\$ 168,230	\$ 168,230	\$ 174,960	\$ 174,960

Local Government	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
20001 GOVERNMENT	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29
Chilliwack	\$ 4,307,304	\$ 4,307,304	\$ 4,307,304	\$ 4,479,597	\$ 4,479,597
City of Langley	\$ 157,059	\$ 157,059	\$ 157,059	\$ 163,342	\$ 163,342
City of North Vancouver	\$ 251,335	\$ 251,335	\$ 251,335	\$ 261,388	\$ 261,388
Clearwater	\$ 172,146	\$ 172,146	\$ 172,146	\$ 179,032	\$ 179,032
Clinton	\$ 92,826	\$ 92,826	\$ 92,826	\$ 96,539	\$ 96,539
Coldstream	\$ 572,070	\$ 572,070	\$ 572,070	\$ 594,953	\$ 594,953
Columbia-Shuswap	\$ 1,097,713	\$ 1,097,713	\$ 1,097,713	\$ 1,141,622	\$ 1,141,622
Colwood	\$ 926,779	\$ 926,779	\$ 926,779	\$ 963,850	\$ 963,850
Comox Town	\$ 737,586	\$ 737,586	\$ 737,586	\$ 767,089	\$ 767,089
Comox Valley	\$ 1,191,376	\$ 1,191,376	\$ 1,191,376	\$ 1,239,031	\$ 1,239,031
Coquitlam	\$ 543,971	\$ 543,971	\$ 543,971	\$ 565,729	\$ 565,729
Courtenay	\$ 1,357,484	\$ 1,357,484	\$ 1,357,484	\$ 1,411,783	\$ 1,411,783
Cowichan Valley	\$ 1,869,330	\$ 1,869,330	\$ 1,869,330	\$ 1,944,103	\$ 1,944,103
Cranbrook	\$ 1,001,090	\$ 1,001,090	\$ 1,001,090	\$ 1,041,134	\$ 1,041,134
Creston	\$ 317,627	\$ 317,627	\$ 317,627	\$ 330,332	\$ 330,332
Cumberland	\$ 265,901	\$ 265,901	\$ 265,901	\$ 276,537	\$ 276,537
Daajing Giids	\$ 107,306	\$ 107,306	\$ 107,306	\$ 111,598	\$ 111,598
Dawson Creek	\$ 624,525	\$ 624,525	\$ 624,525	\$ 649,506	\$ 649,506
Delta	\$ 414,086	\$ 414,086	\$ 414,086	\$ 430,650	\$ 430,650
District of Langley	\$ 492,166	\$ 492,166	\$ 492,166	\$ 511,852	\$ 511,852
District of North Vancouver	\$ 348,491	\$ 348,491	\$ 348,491	\$ 362,431	\$ 362,431
Duncan	\$ 293,221	\$ 293,221	\$ 293,221	\$ 304,950	\$ 304,950
East Kootenay	\$ 884,205	\$ 884,205	\$ 884,205	\$ 919,573	\$ 919,573
Elkford	\$ 188,584	\$ 188,584	\$ 188,584	\$ 196,127	\$ 196,127
Enderby	\$ 201,288	\$ 201,288	\$ 201,288	\$ 209,340	\$ 209,340

Local Covernment	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Local Government	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29
Esquimalt	\$ 861,757	\$ 861,757	\$ 861,757	\$ 896,227	\$ 896,227
Fernie	\$ 351,185	\$ 351,185	\$ 351,185	\$ 365,233	\$ 365,233
Fort St. James	\$ 126,521	\$ 126,521	\$ 126,521	\$ 131,582	\$ 131,582
Fort St. John	\$ 1,040,796	\$ 1,040,796	\$ 1,040,796	\$ 1,082,428	\$ 1,082,428
Fraser Lake	\$ 107,352	\$ 107,352	\$ 107,352	\$ 111,646	\$ 111,646
Fraser Valley	\$ 1,013,612	\$ 1,013,612	\$ 1,013,612	\$ 1,054,157	\$ 1,054,157
Fraser-Fort George	\$ 762,356	\$ 762,356	\$ 762,356	\$ 792,851	\$ 792,851
Fruitvale	\$ 152,567	\$ 152,567	\$ 152,567	\$ 158,669	\$ 158,669
Gibsons	\$ 280,062	\$ 280,062	\$ 280,062	\$ 291,264	\$ 291,264
Gold River	\$ 120,147	\$ 120,147	\$ 120,147	\$ 124,953	\$ 124,953
Golden	\$ 244,909	\$ 244,909	\$ 244,909	\$ 254,706	\$ 254,706
Grand Forks	\$ 250,647	\$ 250,647	\$ 250,647	\$ 260,673	\$ 260,673
Granisle	\$ 78,756	\$ 78,756	\$ 78,756	\$ 81,907	\$ 81,907
Greenwood	\$ 95,376	\$ 95,376	\$ 95,376	\$ 99,191	\$ 99,191
Harrison Hot Springs	\$ 150,153	\$ 150,153	\$ 150,153	\$ 156,160	\$ 156,160
Hazelton	\$ 76,616	\$ 76,616	\$ 76,616	\$ 79,681	\$ 79,681
Highlands	\$ 176,427	\$ 176,427	\$ 176,427	\$ 183,484	\$ 183,484
Норе	\$ 367,851	\$ 367,851	\$ 367,851	\$ 382,565	\$ 382,565
Houston	\$ 202,381	\$ 202,381	\$ 202,381	\$ 210,476	\$ 210,476
Hudson's Hope	\$ 107,033	\$ 107,033	\$ 107,033	\$ 111,314	\$ 111,314
Invermere	\$ 241,768	\$ 241,768	\$ 241,768	\$ 251,438	\$ 251,438
Kamloops	\$ 4,521,268	\$ 4,521,268	\$ 4,521,268	\$ 4,702,119	\$ 4,702,119
Kaslo	\$ 111,176	\$ 111,176	\$ 111,176	\$ 115,624	\$ 115,624
Kelowna	\$ 6,646,516	\$ 6,646,516	\$ 6,646,516	\$ 6,912,376	\$ 6,912,376
Kent	\$ 350,275	\$ 350,275	\$ 350,275	\$ 364,286	\$ 364,286

Local Government		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Local Government		2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29
Keremeos	\$	136,630	\$ 136,630	\$ 136,630	\$ 142,095	\$ 142,095
Kimberley	\$	432,919	\$ 432,919	\$ 432,919	\$ 450,236	\$ 450,236
Kitimat	\$	438,428	\$ 438,428	\$ 438,428	\$ 455,966	\$ 455,966
Kitimat-Stikine	\$	799,284	\$ 799,284	\$ 799,284	\$ 831,256	\$ 831,256
Kootenay Boundary	\$	574,438	\$ 574,438	\$ 574,438	\$ 597,416	\$ 597,416
Ladysmith	\$	472,761	\$ 472,761	\$ 472,761	\$ 491,671	\$ 491,671
Lake Country	\$	783,621	\$ 783,621	\$ 783,621	\$ 814,965	\$ 814,965
Lake Cowichan	\$	214,812	\$ 214,812	\$ 214,812	\$ 223,404	\$ 223,404
Langford	\$	2,184,561	\$ 2,184,561	\$ 2,184,561	\$ 2,271,944	\$ 2,271,944
Lantzville	\$	237,214	\$ 237,214	\$ 237,214	\$ 246,703	\$ 246,703
Lillooet	\$	168,230	\$ 168,230	\$ 168,230	\$ 174,960	\$ 174,960
Lions Bay	\$	67,906	\$ 67,906	\$ 67,906	\$ 70,622	\$ 70,622
Logan Lake	\$	166,090	\$ 166,090	\$ 166,090	\$ 172,734	\$ 172,734
Lumby	\$	157,348	\$ 157,348	\$ 157,348	\$ 163,642	\$ 163,642
Lytton	\$	72,974	\$ 72,974	\$ 72,974	\$ 75 <i>,</i> 893	\$ 75,893
Mackenzie	\$	212,808	\$ 212,808	\$ 212,808	\$ 221,320	\$ 221,320
Maple Ridge	\$	357,616	\$ 357,616	\$ 357,616	\$ 371,920	\$ 371,920
Masset	\$	101,569	\$ 101,569	\$ 101,569	\$ 105,632	\$ 105,632
McBride	\$	90,185	\$ 90,185	\$ 90,185	\$ 93,793	\$ 93,793
Merritt	\$	384,471	\$ 384,471	\$ 384,471	\$ 399,850	\$ 399,850
Metchosin	\$	294,132	\$ 294,132	\$ 294,132	\$ 305,897	\$ 305,897
Metro Vancouver RD	\$	158,550	\$ 158,550	\$ 158,550	\$ 164,892	\$ 164,892
Midway	\$	93,054	\$ 93,054	\$ 93,054	\$ 96,776	\$ 96,776
Mission	\$	1,953,932	\$ 1,953,932	\$ 1,953,932	\$ 2,032,089	\$ 2,032,089
Montrose	\$	109,537	\$ 109,537	\$ 109,537	\$ 113,919	\$ 113,919

Local Government		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Local Government		2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29
Mount Waddington	\$	217,908	\$ 217,908	\$ 217,908	\$ 226,624	\$ 226,624
Nakusp	\$	135,765	\$ 135,765	\$ 135,765	\$ 141,195	\$ 141,195
Nanaimo	\$	4,610,560	\$ 4,610,560	\$ 4,610,560	\$ 4,794,982	\$ 4,794,982
Nanaimo RD	\$	2,055,154	\$ 2,055,154	\$ 2,055,154	\$ 2,137,360	\$ 2,137,360
Nelson	\$	569,111	\$ 569,111	\$ 569,111	\$ 591,875	\$ 591,875
New Denver	\$	85,586	\$ 85,586	\$ 85,586	\$ 89,010	\$ 89,010
New Hazelton	\$	90,823	\$ 90,823	\$ 90,823	\$ 94,456	\$ 94,456
New Westminster	\$	318,576	\$ 318,576	\$ 318,576	\$ 331,319	\$ 331,319
North Coast	\$	212,262	\$ 212,262	\$ 212,262	\$ 220,752	\$ 220,752
North Cowichan	\$	1,520,040	\$ 1,520,040	\$ 1,520,040	\$ 1,580,841	\$ 1,580,841
North Okanagan	\$	983,150	\$ 983,150	\$ 983,150	\$ 1,022,476	\$ 1,022,476
North Saanich	\$	620,518	\$ 620,518	\$ 620,518	\$ 645,339	\$ 645,339
Northern Rockies RM	\$	267,312	\$ 267,312	\$ 267,312	\$ 278,005	\$ 278,005
Oak Bay	\$	882,566	\$ 882,566	\$ 882,566	\$ 917,868	\$ 917,868
Okanagan-Similkameen	\$	1,251,800	\$ 1,251,800	\$ 1,251,800	\$ 1,301,872	\$ 1,301,872
Oliver	\$	295,361	\$ 295,361	\$ 295,361	\$ 307,175	\$ 307,175
Osoyoos	\$	316,398	\$ 316,398	\$ 316,398	\$ 329,054	\$ 329,054
Parksville	\$	684,584	\$ 684,584	\$ 684,584	\$ 711,968	\$ 711,968
Peace River	\$	979,689	\$ 979,689	\$ 979,689	\$ 1,018,877	\$ 1,018,877
Peachland	\$	327,007	\$ 327,007	\$ 327,007	\$ 340,087	\$ 340,087
Pemberton	\$	218,545	\$ 218,545	\$ 218,545	\$ 227,287	\$ 227,287
Penticton	\$	1,742,928	\$ 1,742,928	\$ 1,742,928	\$ 1,812,645	\$ 1,812,645
Pitt Meadows	\$	125,318	\$ 125,318	\$ 125,318	\$ 130,330	\$ 130,330
Port Alberni	\$	894,814	\$ 894,814	\$ 894,814	\$ 930,607	\$ 930,607
Port Alice	\$	97,061	\$ 97,061	\$ 97,061	\$ 100,943	\$ 100,943

Local Government	Year 1		Year 2			Year 3	Year 4			Year 5		
		2024/25		2025/26		2026/27		2027/28		2028/29		
Port Clements	\$	78,893	\$	78,893	\$	78,893	\$	82,049	\$	82,049		
Port Coquitlam	\$	262,257	\$	262,257	\$	262,257	\$	272,747	\$	272,747		
Port Edward	\$	84,812	\$	84,812	\$	84,812	\$	88,205	\$	88,205		
Port Hardy	\$	241,085	\$	241,085	\$	241,085	\$	250,728	\$	250,728		
Port McNeill	\$	170,689	\$	170,689	\$	170,689	\$	177,517	\$	177,517		
Port Moody	\$	171,842	\$	171,842	\$	171,842	\$	178,716	\$	178,716		
Pouce Coupe	\$	98,108	\$	98,108	\$	98,108	\$	102,033	\$	102,033		
Powell River City	\$	698,290	\$	698,290	\$	698,290	\$	726,222	\$	726,222		
Prince George	\$	3,556,223	\$	3,556,223	\$	3,556,223	\$	3,698,472	\$	3,698,472		
Prince Rupert	\$	623,478	\$	623,478	\$	623,478	\$	648,417	\$	648,417		
Princeton	\$	195,186	\$	195,186	\$	195,186	\$	202,994	\$	202,994		
qathet	\$	406,373	\$	406,373	\$	406,373	\$	422,627	\$	422,627		
Qualicum Beach	\$	487,013	\$	487,013	\$	487,013	\$	506,494	\$	506,494		
Quesnel	\$	513,696	\$	513,696	\$	513,696	\$	534,244	\$	534,244		
Radium Hot Springs	\$	124,381	\$	124,381	\$	124,381	\$	129,357	\$	129,357		
Revelstoke	\$	440,204	\$	440,204	\$	440,204	\$	457,812	\$	457,812		
Richmond	\$	747,731	\$	747,731	\$	747,731	\$	777,640	\$	777,640		
Rossland	\$	251,922	\$	251,922	\$	251,922	\$	261,999	\$	261,999		
Saanich	\$	5,424,341	\$	5,424,341	\$	5,424,341	\$	5,641,315	\$	5,641,315		
Salmo	\$	115,320	\$	115,320	\$	115,320	\$	119,933	\$	119,933		
Salmon Arm	\$	948,226	\$	948,226	\$	948,226	\$	986,155	\$	986,155		
Sayward	\$	78,620	\$	78,620	\$	78,620	\$	81,765	\$	81,765		
Sechelt	\$	557,317	\$	557,317	\$	557,317	\$	579,610	\$	579,610		
Sechelt Indian	\$	98,245	\$	98,245	\$	98,245	\$	102,175	\$	102,175		
Sicamous	\$	182,391	\$	182,391	\$	182,391	\$	189,687	\$	189,687		

Local Government		Year 1		Year 2		Year 3		Year 4		Year 5	
2000. 00 70111110110		2024/25		2025/26		2026/27		2027/28		2028/29	
Sidney	\$	624,298	\$	624,298	\$	624,298	\$	649,270	\$	649,270	
Silverton	\$	71,653	\$	71,653	\$	71,653	\$	74,519	\$	74,519	
Slocan	\$	80,669	\$	80,669	\$	80,669	\$	83,896	\$	83,896	
Smithers	\$	308,293	\$	308,293	\$	308,293	\$	320,624	\$	320,624	
Sooke	\$	750,335	\$	750,335	\$	750,335	\$	780,349	\$	780,349	
Spallumcheen	\$	305,060	\$	305,060	\$	305,060	\$	317,262	\$	317,262	
Sparwood	\$	252,286	\$	252,286	\$	252,286	\$	262,377	\$	262,377	
Squamish	\$	1,147,983	\$	1,147,983	\$	1,147,983	\$	1,193,902	\$	1,193,902	
Squamish-Lillooet	\$	381,511	\$	381,511	\$	381,511	\$	396,771	\$	396,771	
Stewart	\$	86,952	\$	86,952	\$	86,952	\$	90,431	\$	90,431	
Strathcona	\$	542,974	\$	542,974	\$	542,974	\$	564,693	\$	564,693	
Summerland	\$	611,730	\$	611,730	\$	611,730	\$	636,199	\$	636,199	
Sun Peaks Mountain	\$	127,341	\$	127,341	\$	127,341	\$	132,435	\$	132,435	
Sunshine Coast	\$	783,803	\$	783,803	\$	783,803	\$	815,155	\$	815,155	
Surrey	\$	1,901,005	\$	1,901,005	\$	1,901,005	\$	1,977,045	\$	1,977,045	
Tahsis	\$	81,306	\$	81,306	\$	81,306	\$	84 <i>,</i> 559	\$	84,559	
Taylor	\$	123,380	\$	123,380	\$	123,380	\$	128,315	\$	128,315	
Telkwa	\$	130,528	\$	130,528	\$	130,528	\$	135,750	\$	135,750	
Terrace	\$	610,592	\$	610,592	\$	610,592	\$	635,016	\$	635,016	
Thompson-Nicola	\$	1,202,714	\$	1,202,714	\$	1,202,714	\$	1,250,823	\$	1,250,823	
Tofino	\$	177,975	\$	177,975	\$	177,975	\$	185,094	\$	185,094	
Trail	\$	424,040	\$	424,040	\$	424,040	\$	441,001	\$	441,001	
Tumbler Ridge	\$	172,647	\$	172,647	\$	172,647	\$	179,553	\$	179,553	
Ucluelet	\$	157,484	\$	157,484	\$	157,484	\$	163,784	\$	163,784	
Valemount	\$	111,313	\$	111,313	\$	111,313	\$	115,766	\$	115,766	

Local Government	Year 1 2024/25		Year 2 2025/26		Year 3 2026/27		Year 4 2027/28		Year 5 2028/29	
Vancouver	\$	2,204,702	\$	2,204,702	\$	2,204,702	\$	2,292,890	\$	2,292,890
Vanderhoof	\$	261,302	\$	261,302	\$	261,302	\$	271,754	\$	271,754
Vernon	\$	2,090,534	\$	2,090,534	\$	2,090,534	\$	2,174,155	\$	2,174,155
Victoria	\$	4,246,471	\$	4,246,471	\$	4,246,471	\$	4,416,330	\$	4,416,330
View Royal	\$	590,466	\$	590,466	\$	590,466	\$	614,085	\$	614,085
Warfield	\$	143,232	\$	143,232	\$	143,232	\$	148,962	\$	148,962
Wells	\$	73,338	\$	73,338	\$	73,338	\$	76,271	\$	76,271
West Kelowna	\$	1,706,182	\$	1,706,182	\$	1,706,182	\$	1,774,430	\$	1,774,430
West Vancouver	\$	206,074	\$	206,074	\$	206,074	\$	214,317	\$	214,317
Whistler	\$	700,066	\$	700,066	\$	700,066	\$	728,069	\$	728,069
White Rock	\$	134,348	\$	134,348	\$	134,348	\$	139,722	\$	139,722
Williams Lake	\$	561,871	\$	561,871	\$	561,871	\$	584,346	\$	584,346
Zeballos	\$	69,149	\$	69,149	\$	69,149	\$	71,915	\$	71,915